
          

 

 

COCO PALMS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2023 
6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 
 

786.313.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



   
 AGENDA 

COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Artesa Clubhouse  

11690 SW 248th Street  
Homestead, FL 33032 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 8, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication...........................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. General Election Protocol – Declare Vacancies and Consider Appointment  

E. Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Responsibilities and Duties 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………...Page 2 

I. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Lake Fountain Installation 

2. Staff Report: As Required 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget……Page 5 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Election of Officers………………………………………Page 13 

3. Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure………………………………………..Page 14 

K. Administrative & Operational Matters 

L. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 16, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the November 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Coco Palms Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:46 p.m. in the Artesa 
Clubhouse located at 11690 SW 248th Street, Homestead, Florida 33032. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Miami Daily Business Review on October 25, 2023, and November 1, 2023, as 
legally required. 
 
C. SEAT ELECTED BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Silva seated and welcomed the newly elected Board Member: Nilka Gomez 
 
D. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER 
RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES 
 
Mr. Silva, Notary Public for the State of Florida administered the Oath of Office to the elected 
Board Member Nilka Gomez. 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of the following Board Members constituted a quorum and 
it was in order to proceed with the meeting: Chairperson Corissa Nguyen, Vice Chairperson Seth 
Patterson and Supervisor Nilka Gomez. 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; 
District Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.. 
 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Silva stated that due to the Final Landowners’ Election and the new terms of office it would be 
in order to re-elect the officers on the Board of Supervisors of the District. A discussion ensued 
after which the following slate of officers was presented for election:  
 

 Chairperson – Corissa Nguyen 
 Vice Chairperson – Seth Patterson 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Armando Silva 
 Assistant Secretaries – Monica Encinas, Nilka Gomez, Gloria Perez and Nancy 

Nguyen. 
 
A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Nguyen, seconded by Ms. Gomez and unanimously passed to elect the 
District’s slate of officers, as stated above. 

Page 2



 
G. CONFIRMATION OF FINAL LANDOWNERS’ MEETING ELECTION RESULTS 
 
Mr. Silva restated the District’s Final Landowners’ Meeting/Election results and recommended that 
they be accepted by the Board. A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Gomez, seconded by Ms. Nguyen and passed unanimously accepting 
the Final Landowners’ Meeting election results, to wit: Nilka Gomez recieves 1 vote and were each 
elected to a 4-year term of office and her term of office shall expire in November 2026.  
 
H. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
J. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  August 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Silva presented the August 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing minutes and 
asked if there were any comments and/or changes. There being no comments or changes, a motion 
was made by Ms. Gomez, seconded by Ms. Nguyen and unanimously passed approving the August 
17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing minutes, as presented. 
 
K. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding Lake Fountain Installation 
 
Mr. Silva stated that the permits for the installation of the fountain have been sent to the City of 
Homestead. Mr. Silva expects the permit to be approved by January 2023.   
 

2. Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was no Staff Report at this time. 
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended 
Budget 

 
Ms. Nguyen presented Resolution No. 2022-06, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COCO 
PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 
AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 
BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Page 3



Mr. Silva read the title into the record and provided an explanation for the document. He indicated 
that there was an operating fund balance of approximately $169,000 at the end of the fiscal year. A 
discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Patterson, seconded by Ms. Gomez and unanimously passed to adopt 
Resolution No. 2022-06, as presented, thereby setting the amended/revised budget for the 
2021/2022 fiscal year. 
   
M. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 1.  Staff Report: As Required 
 
There was no Staff Report at this time. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Silva advised that the next meeting would be held after January 1, 2023, unless an emergency 
were to arise.  
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Nguyen, 
seconded by Ms. Gomez and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 
approximately 6:55 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

___________________________                      _____________________________ 
   Secretary/Assistant Secretary                      Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COCO 
PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Coco Palms Community 
Development District (the “District”) is required by Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, to 
approve a Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2. A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 14, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Suite 300 Meeting Room at Lennar Homes, LLC located at 730 N.W. 107th Avenue, Third Floor, 
Miami, Florida 33172, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of March, 2023. 
 

   
ATTEST: COCO PALMS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 5



  Coco Palms
 Community Development District

      Proposed Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2023/2024

     October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(“DISTRICT”) ELECTING THE OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Coco Palms Community 
Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-purpose government created and 
existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(6), Florida Statutes, as soon as practicable 
after each election or appointment to the Board, the Board shall organize by electing one (1) of 
its members as chairperson and by electing a secretary, and such other officers as the Board may 
deem necessary. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COCO PALMSCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 

1. The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 

 
    Chairperson 

    Vice Chairperson  

    Secretary/Treasurer 

    Assistant Secretary  

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

   

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and BECOMES EFFECTIVE this 8th day of March, 2023. 

 
 

ATTEST: COCO PALMS COMMUNITY                        
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
___________________________         
Secretary/Assistant Secretary               Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15


	Coco Palms Community Development District - March 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure




